



judo alberta

THE ALBERTA KODOKAN BLACK BELT ASSOCIATION

THE ALBERTA KODOKAN BLACK BELT ASSOCIATION

BY-LAWS

THE ALBERTA KODOKAN BLACK BELT ASSOCIATION (hereinafter referred to as "the Association") enacts that the existing By-laws of the Association, as amended, are rescinded and the following substituted therefor.

I. OFFICES

SECTION 1. PRINCIPAL OFFICE The principal office of the Association, being the address to which communications and notices may be sent, and at which all process may be served, shall be at such place in the Province of Alberta, as the Executive may, from time to time, designate.

II. MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1. CLASSES OF MEMBERSHIP There shall be four classes of membership in the Association, namely: honorary Membership, Regular Membership, Associate Membership, and Life Membership.

a. HONOURARY MEMBERSHIP

Such non judoka as the Association may from time to time appoint shall be entitled to be Honourary Members of the Association and as such shall be entitled to all rights, and privileges of Regular Members, save that they are not to be entitled to vote at, nor shall they be entitled to notice of, but they shall be entitled to attend meetings of the members of the

Association. They shall not be required to pay any membership fees or dues.

b. REGULAR MEMBERSHIP

Any person being of the full age of 18 years, or, holding a Black Belt Degree recognized as such by the Canadian Kodokan Black Belt Association (Judo Canada), may be eligible for Regular Membership and upon acceptance of the application for membership and upon payment of the annual fee , shall become a Regular Member of the Association and shall continue to be a regular member until he resigns or ceases to be a member in accordance with the provisions of these by-laws.

c. ASSOCIATE MEMBERSHIP

Any person studying or practising Judo and not qualifying for Regular Membership, and upon acceptance of the application for membership and payment of the annual fee, shall become an Associate Member of the Association and shall continue to be an Associate Member until he resigns or ceases to be such a member in accordance with the provisions of these by-laws, or until he qualifies for regular membership when he will be immediately granted regular membership rights and privileges. Associate Members shall not be entitled to vote at nor shall they be entitled to notice of, but they shall be entitled to attend meetings of the members of the Association.

d. LIFE MEMBERSHIP

Such Regular or Associate members, as the Regular Members of the Association may from time to time appoint, may be appointed Life Members of the Association and as such shall be entitled to all rights and privileges of Regular Members. They shall not be required to pay any membership fees or dues.

SECTION 2. ELIGIBILITY FOR MEMBERSHIP Any person:

- i ordinarily resident in Alberta, and
- ii being of good character

may be eligible for membership.

SECTION 3. APPLICATION FOR MEMBERSHIP Any person may make an application for membership in the form(s) prescribed by the Executive for

that purpose. An applicant shall become a member of the Association upon approval of his application by the Executive and payment in advance of the fee for one year. The means used to identify any member of the Association may be approved by the Executive and may be changed or modified as the Executive sees fit.

SECTION 4. CONDUCT SUFFICIENT FOR SUSPENSION

Any member of

the

Association:

- a. Who fails to pay any indebtedness (other than fees) to the Association within 60 days from the date when due; or
- b. Whose conduct is considered by the Disciplinary Committee as prejudicial to the best interests of the Association or injurious to its character and reputation; or
- c. Participates in a tournament, clinic or other display that he has been advised is not approved the by Association, after receiving notice to that effect from the Association; or
- d. Practices in a club, in the Province of Alberta, that he has been advised by the Association, is not registered under these by-laws; or
- e. Has been suspended, disciplined or expelled by Judo Canada or other recognized Judo governing body;

shall be notified in writing to this effect via registered mail, addressed to his address appearing on the books and records of the Association. The person concerned shall be suspended or expelled from membership only after a noticed hearing. The Disciplinary Committee shall at such noticed hearing duly consider the charges made against such person and any oral or written material presented to it by the person whose suspension is being considered. At the conclusion of the hearing the Disciplinary Committee may, by the affirmative vote of not less than three-quarters of those present, either:

- i Suspend the member for a definite period of time;
- ii Suspend until the suspension is terminated by the Disciplinary Committee;
- iii Expel the person from the Association, thereby terminating his status as a member of the Association.

If the Disciplinary Committee does not impose any of the sanctions mentioned above, the person shall, at the termination of the meeting at which his hearing was held, be restored to full status.

If the Disciplinary Committee imposes sanctions under "ii" above, the said Committee shall specify the period for review. The suspension shall continue until such time as the suspended party applies to the Disciplinary Committee as a candidate for reinstatement, after the period for review, and, if accepted as such, a candidate shall comply with the terms and conditions for re-instatement as may be specified by the Disciplinary Committee.

A member suspended shall forfeit all rights and privileges of a member and shall only be eligible for re-admission or re-instatement as a member upon such terms as the Disciplinary Committee shall determine.

A member who has been expelled shall forfeit all rights and privileges, and shall not be eligible for re-admission or reinstatement.

SECTION 5. DISCIPLINARY COMMITTEE All matters relating to conduct sufficient for suspension shall be managed by a Disciplinary Committee consisting of one regular member from each of the eight Sport Alberta Zones with at least one club registered under these by-laws, who may, exercise all such powers and do all such acts and things as necessary.

a. Appointment to Office:

The Regular Members shall be appointed by the Executive on January 1 in each year or so soon thereafter as is practical.

b. Meetings of the Disciplinary Committee:

The Disciplinary Committee shall meet as the need arises, or at the call of the President or the Executive.

c. Decision of the Disciplinary Committee:

Any decision of the Disciplinary Committee shall be reduced to writing and forwarded to the person concerned to his address appearing on the books and records of the Association.

d. **Interim measures**

The Executive Committee may impose interim measures pending a meeting of the Disciplinary Committee, if the Executive Committee is of the view that the imposition of such measures is in the best interests of the members of the Association. Interim measures are not suspension, and may take different forms, including but not limited to the imposition of conditions upon continued participation of a member in the activities or work of the Association and/or member clubs.

SECTION 6. APPEAL An appeal lies to the Executive from a decision of the Disciplinary Committee. The appeal must be in writing, addressed to the Secretary of the Association and be filed within 20 days of the person concerned being notified of the decision of the Disciplinary Committee. The decision of the Executive in such matters shall be final.

III. FEES

SECTION 1. ANNUAL FEES Annual fees shall be due and payable by Regular and Associate Members in each year on such date and in such amounts as may be set by the Executive Committee from time to time.

SECTION 2. ARREARS Any member who has failed to pay his fees within 60 days from the date due shall stand suspended from membership and shall not be entitled to the rights and privileges of membership until all arrears of fees are paid, unless the Executive shall otherwise direct.

IV. MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

SECTION 1. ANNUAL MEETING The Annual Meeting of the members of the Association shall be held at such place within the Province of Alberta, at such time and on such date as shall be determined by the Executive, provided however, that such Annual Meeting shall not be sooner than twenty days after the determination of the time, date and place of such meeting, provided always and subject to the provisions of the Societies Act. At every Annual Meeting, in addition to any other business that may be transacted, the reports of the members of the Executive, the Committees, and audited financial Statements shall be presented.

SECTION 2. GENERAL MEETINGS Except where the Societies Act otherwise provides, or the law otherwise requires, the members may consider and transact any business either special or general without any notice thereof at any meeting of the members.

SECTION 3. SPECIAL MEETINGS Meetings of the members may be called by the Executive or the President of the Association, or meetings shall be called upon the written request of one-tenth of the total number of Regular Members of the Association.

SECTION 4. PERSONS ENTITLED TO BE PRESENT All members of the Association are entitled to attend meetings of the Association. Any other persons may be admitted only upon the invitation of the Chairman of the meeting or with the consent of the meeting.

SECTION 5. NOTICES Notice of all meetings of members unless waived in writing shall be given at least twenty one (21) days before but not more than forty days before the meeting to each Regular and Life member by mail addressed to his address appearing on the records of the Association. Notices of all meetings of members shall state the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called and the time and place where it is to be held.

SECTION 6. ERROR OR OMISSION IN NOTICE No error or omission in giving notice of any annual general meeting, general meeting, or special meeting, or any such adjourned meeting shall invalidate such meeting or make void any proceedings taken or had thereat.

SECTION 7. ADJOURNMENT Any meetings of the Association or of the Executive Committee may be adjourned to any time and from time to time and such business may be transacted at such adjourned meeting as might have been transacted at the original meeting from which such adjournment took place. No notice shall be required of any such adjournment. Such adjournment may be made notwithstanding that no quorum is present.

SECTION 8. QUORUM One-fifth of the total number of Regular Members in the Association either present in person or by proxy at any meeting of the Association, shall constitute a quorum and in the event that no such quorum is present, the meeting shall stand adjourned to a time and place determined by the President, and the quorum at any such adjourned meeting shall be those members who shall be present in person or by proxy at such adjourned meeting.

SECTION 9. VOTING Each Regular Member and Life Member of the Association shall at all meetings of the Association be entitled to One (1) Vote and may vote by proxy. Where there is voting by proxy, the proxy shall produce and deposit with the Secretary, in the approved form, sufficient appointment in writing from his appointer or appointers. No member shall be entitled, either in person or by proxy, to vote at meetings of the Association unless he has paid all dues and fees if any, then payable by him to the Association.

V. GRADING AND PROMOTION

SECTION 1. DAN PROMOTIONS All matters and powers related to the promotion of members from Ikkyu to and within Dan Rank shall be vested in a Grading Committee, and members of the Association shall be so graded in accordance with the general accepted standards in Canadian Judo. The requirements for promotion to and within Dan Rank may be reviewed by the Executive.

SECTION 2. KYU PROMOTIONS All matters and powers related to the promotion of Members up to and including the rank of Ikkyu shall be awarded only by at least one Black Belt Regular Member of the Association certified at Level 2 under the National Coaching Certification Program or equivalent certification under the CBET Program. Members shall be promoted in accordance with the general accepted standards in Canadian Judo.

SECTION 3. REGISTRATION OF PROMOTIONS All promotions shall forthwith be recorded in the forms prescribed and sent to the Registrar of the Association with the registration fee.

SECTION 4. BELT COLOURS The colour of belt to be worn by any member shall conform to that standard generally in use in Canada.

VI. OFFICERS

SECTION 1. TITLE AND QUALIFICATIONS The affairs and operations of the Association shall be managed by an Executive Committee consisting of a President, a Vice President Administration, a Vice President Finance, a Secretary, a Treasurer, a Registrar, an Athlete's Representative, a Women's Representative and the Chair of the Regional Council and such officers as the regular members may from time to time determine. The people serving in these roles also hold the position of director. Any person may hold more than one office.

SECTION 2. REMOVAL AND RESIGNATION Any officer may be removed with just cause by the Regular Membership at any meeting thereof. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written reasonable notice to the Executive and Regular Membership of the Association. Any resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt of such notice or any other later time specified therein and unless otherwise specified the acceptance of any such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

SECTION 3. DUTIES OF THE PRESIDENT The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Association and ex officio a member of each committee. He shall, when present, preside at all meeting of the Association. The President, together with the Secretary or other officer appointed by the Regular Membership for the purpose shall sign all resolutions. The President will be the official representative of the Association at all meetings of Judo Canada, and submit the necessary proposals of the Association to Judo Canada. He shall perform such duties as may from time to time be determined by the Executive

SECTION 4. DUTIES OF THE VICE PRESIDENT - ADMINISTRATION The Vice President ~ Administration of the Association shall perform all duties performed by the President in the absence of the said President and other duties as assigned by the Executive.

SECTION 5. DUTIES OF THE VICE PRESIDENT – FINANCE The Vice President Finance of the Association shall be responsible for the financial planning of the Association and be responsible for the organizing and obtaining of the grants available to the Association. He shall also perform such other duties as may from time to time be determined by the Executive.

SECTION 6. DUTIES OF THE SECRETARY The Secretary shall attend meetings of the Association and record all facts and minutes of all proceedings in

the books kept for that purpose. He shall give all notices required to be given to members and to directors. He shall be the custodian of all books, papers, records, correspondence, contracts, and other documents belonging to the Association. He shall perform such other duties as may from time to time be determined by the Executive.

SECTION 7. DUTIES OF THE TREASURER The Treasurer shall keep a full and accurate account of all receipts and disbursements of the Association in proper books of account and shall deposit all money or other valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the Association in such bank or banks as may from time to time be designated by the Executive. He shall disburse the funds of the Association under the direction of the Executive taking proper vouchers and shall render to the Executive at the regular meetings thereof or whenever required of him an account of all his transactions as Treasurer and of the financial position of the Association. He shall also perform such other duties as may from time to time be determined by the Executive.

SECTION 8. DUTIES OF THE REGISTRAR The Registrar shall be generally charged with the keeping of a register of members, a record of promotions, and any and all tournament records. He shall also perform such other duties as may, from time to time, be determined by the Executive.

SECTION 9. DUTIES OF THE ATHLETE'S REPRESENTATIVE To represent the interests of all provincial team members.

SECTION 10. DUTIES OF THE WOMEN'S REPRESENTATIVE To represent the interests of female members of the Association. To provide leadership, direction and strategic advice regarding the participation and development of female members. To design and recommend programs specific to the needs of female members.

SECTION 11. TERM OF OFFICE All officers of the Association shall be elected at an Annual Meeting and shall hold office for a term of two years. No officer may hold the same office for more than three consecutive terms. When an officer resigns, or is unable to carry out his duties before the expiry of his term the Executive may appoint a member to replace the resigning or disable officer and such replacing officer shall hold office until the expiry of the current term.

Election of officers shall be in alternate years with the positions of President, Vice President - Administration, Secretary, Treasurer, and Regional Chair in one year followed by the positions for Vice President of Finance, National Councilor, Registrar, Athlete's Representative and Women's Representative the next year.

SECTION 12. ELECTION OF DIRECTOR, PRAIRIE REGION Upon the Association becoming eligible to have one of its regular members become the Director representing the Prairie Region to Judo Canada, an election for the position of Director, Prairie Region shall be held at the Annual Meeting immediately prior to the Meeting of Judo Canada where such person is to be confirmed.

VII. REGIONAL COUNCIL

SECTION 1 There shall be a Regional Council consisting of eight members of the Association representing the eight sporting zones in the Province of Alberta established by the Alberta Sports Recreation Parks and Wildlife Foundation or its successor.

SECTION 2 Nomination for the Position of Zone Representative

Each club will choose a name from their Club Membership to be forwarded to the current Regional Council Chair for consideration as possible zone rep. If more than 2 names are forwarded in a zone, the current regional councilor will at his discretion pick 2 names from his zone. When all the names have been forwarded to Judo Alberta, the appointment of the new Regional Councilor will be done by the Executive of Judo Alberta at their discretion.

SECTION 4. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE REGIONAL COUNCIL

- a. To plan, sponsor and co-ordinate Judo events in their respective zones subject to the approval of the Executive of the Association.
- b. To act as liaison between the general membership and club membership in each zone and the Executive.
- c. To advise the Executive on funding and general programs.

- d. The Regional Council shall keep minutes of its meetings and provide a copy to the Secretary.
- e. The Regional Council shall meet at least once in each year.

VIII COMMITTEES

SECTION 1. ADVISORY COMMITTEE There shall be an advisory committee consisting of the members of the Executive, the members of the Regional Council, and all committee chairmen, which shall meet at least once in each year to review past plans and results, formulate budgets and plans for the coming year and any future years as deemed necessary.

SECTION 2. OTHER COMMITTEES There shall be a Grading Committee, a Technical Committee, a Referees Committee, a Women's Committee, a NCCP Committee and a Coaches Committee. The Chairman of each Committee and the Head Coach shall be appointed by the President. Each such appointed person shall provide a list of committee or staff members to the Executive for approval.

The Executive or the Annual Meeting may establish such additional committees as they deem necessary from time to time. The purpose, duties, membership and other terms of such committees shall be fully set out in the Minutes of the Meeting bringing the committee into existence and such committee shall continue to exist until dissolved by a meeting of the Executive or the Annual Meeting.

All committee members shall hold office for a term of two years.

All committees shall keep minutes of their meetings and provide a copy to the Secretary.

IX. MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 1. REMUNERATION OF OFFICERS AND MEMBERS No officer or member of the Association shall receive any compensation for any services rendered as an officer or member unless the same shall first have been approved by a meeting of the members of the Association. Without restricting the generality of the foregoing, the Regular Membership of the Association may from time to time allocate funds to an officer or member of the Association to reimburse them for out of pocket expenses while carrying out the official business of the Association.

SECTION 2. AUDIT AND BOOKS OF ACCOUNT The books, accounts and records of the Association shall be audited at least once each year by a duly qualified accountant or by two members of the Association appointed for that purpose by the Executive at the Annual Meeting.

A complete and proper statement of the standing of the books of the previous year shall be submitted by the Treasurer to the Annual Meeting.

The books and records of the Association may be inspected by any member of the Association at the Annual Meeting provided for herein, or at any time upon giving reasonable notice and arranging a time satisfactory to the officer or officers having charge of the same. Each member of the Executive shall at all times have access to such books and records.

SECTION 3. BORROWING POWERS For the purpose of carrying out its Objects, the Association may borrow or raise or secure the payment of money in such manner as it thinks fit and in particular by the issue of debentures, but this power shall be exercised only under the authority of the Association and in no case shall debentures be issued without the sanction of an extraordinary resolution of the Association.

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT These By-laws may be rescinded, altered or added to by a special resolution passed by a majority of not less than three-quarters of the Regular Members as are present in person or by proxy at a general meeting of which written notice specifying the intention to propose the resolution as a Special Resolution has been duly given.

SECTION 5. INTERPRETATION In these By-laws, unless the context otherwise requires, words importing the singular number or the masculine gender shall include the plural number or the feminine gender as the case may be, and vice versa, and the references to persons shall include firms and corporations. Wherever reference is made to any statute or section thereof, such reference shall be deemed to apply to any amendment to the said statute or section as the case may be. When construing the by-laws reference shall be made to the Societies Act and words and expressions used in the by-laws shall, so far as the context does not otherwise require, have the same meaning as would be the case when used in the Societies Act.

SECTION 6. CLUBS Any members of the Association forming themselves into a club for the purpose of practising the sport of Kodokan Judo must

have the club registered with the Association and the Association may levy a fee for such registration.

A club must have a Regular Member(s) of the Association as the person(s) responsible for the teaching of the sport of Kodokan Judo.

All members of the Association must, when practising within the Province of Alberta, practice only in a club registered under these by-laws.

SECTION 7. REGIONAL ACTIVITIES Any member clubs wishing to form a regional body and registering that regional body annually with the Association, may do so on completing an application for recognition. The Association may levy a fee for such registration. The clubs forming the regional body must be individually registered with the Association under Section 6.

SECTION 8. CUSTODY AND USE OF SEAL The Executive may adopt a seal which shall be the common seal of the Association.

The common seal of the Association shall be under the control of the Executive and the responsibility for its custody and use from time to time shall be determined by the Executive.

X. DISSOLUTION

Upon dissolution of the Association, and after payment of all debts and liabilities, its remaining properties and assets shall be distributed to any recognized Canadian amateur athletic association or to any recognized charitable organization.

XI. RULES, REGULATIONS, POLICIES

The Executive Committee may prescribe rules, regulations and policies not inconsistent with these by-laws relating to the Associations activities.